
 

 

 ADDENDUM ONE 

 

 
DATE:  December 27, 2013 
 
TO:  All Vendors  
 
FROM: Kristi Kling/Nancy Storant, Buyers 

State Purchasing Bureau  
 
RE:  Questions and Answers plus “Exhibit A:  Kearney Youth Rehab Utilization” 

and “Exhibit B:  Geneva Youth Rehab Utilization” for RFP Number 4579Z1 
to be opened January 10, 2014 2:00 p.m. Central Time 

 

 
Following are the questions submitted and answers provided for the above mentioned 
Request For Proposal.  The questions and answers are to be considered as part of the 
Request For Proposal. 

QUESTIONS ANSWERS 

1. Can you please provide us with the last 
90 days utilization for both of the YRTC 
facilities in Geneva and Kearney 
including name of drug prescribed, 
strength and quantity? 

See Exhibits A and B to this Addendum One. 

2. Do you use an electronic MAR (eMAR) 
and/or an electronic order system? 

YRTC-Geneva does not use eMAR. YRTC-
Kearney uses eMAR. Both facilities use an 
electronic order system. 

3. If an electronic MAR or an electronic 
order entry system is used, what is the 
name of the current system used? 

The eMAR system used by YRTC-Kearney 
and the electronic order system are both 
supplied online by the current vendor. 

4. If an electronic MAR or an electronic 
order entry system is used, will it be 
required to use the same system for 
pharmacy services? 

No, the awarded vendor will not be required 
to use the same system. Currently the 
electronic order system and the eMAR 
system are supplied online by the current 
vendor.   

Gerry A. Oligmueller 
                       Acting Director 
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QUESTIONS ANSWERS 

5. Item 3.e on page 11 – Will the State 
accept a claims made malpractice 
insurance policy as long as coverage is 
continuous and/or carries tail coverage 
where needed? 

The RFP requirement on page 11, Item 3.e. 
states: 

 “Maintain and provide proof of 
malpractice insurance coverage in the 
amount of $1,000,000.00 per occurrence and 
$3,000,000.00 in aggregate.” 

Any alternative provided by a bidder per the 
“Reject and Provide Alternative Within RFP 
Response” option will be evaluated at the 
time the contract is awarded. 

6. What is the average number of 
prescriptions filled per month per facility 
for the past 12 months? 

YRTC-Geneva – 125 

YRTC-Kearney - 295 

7. How many medications are (or what 
percentage of medications is) dispensed 
as stock? As patient-specific? 

Most stock medications are not purchased 
from pharmacy.  

Geneva stock medications- Tylenol, 
Ibuprofen, Midol, Sudafed, cough drops, 
melatonin, Benadryl, Tums, Pepcid, 
Immodium, Excedrin, vitamins.   

Kearney stock medications- Tylenol, 
Ibuprofen, Medi-phenyl, Mylanta, Pepto 
Bismol, Milk of Magnesia, Neosporin, 
hydrocortisone crème, Campho-phenique, 
Tolinfatate antifungal crème, Epsom salt, 
Guaifenesin syrup (cough) 

No stock medications are patient specific.  
Only prescriptions are patient specific – see 
Exhibits A and B for list of prescription 
medications. 

8. What type of medication packaging 
(blister cards, vials, strips, other) do you 
currently use?  

Do you intend to keep the same 
packaging? 

Currently the facilities use vials for non-
controlled substances and blister packs for 
controlled substances.  

Yes the facilities intend to use the same 
packaging. 

9. How many days’(for example, 7 days, 10 
days, 14 days, or 30 days) worth of 
medications are typically dispensed for 
routine medication orders?  

Do you intend to keep this the same? 

A 30-day supply is the typical amount 
dispensed for routine medication orders. 

 

Yes the facilities intend to keep this the same. 

10. Regarding the current contract rate for 
pharmacy services: Is it a discount to 
average wholesale price (AWP)? If so, 
what is the current discount to AWP? 

Yes it is a discount off AWP. Currently the 
discount is 20% off brand name, 35% off 
generic. 
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QUESTIONS ANSWERS 

11. Regarding the current contract rate for 
pharmacy services: Is it acquisition cost 
plus a dispensing fee? If so, what is the 
current dispensing fee? 

Yes. The dispensing fee is $3.25 per 
prescription. 

12. Regarding the current contract rate for 
pharmacy services: Is there a 
dispensing fee per prescription being 
charged?  If so, can that be provided 
please? 

See answer to Question 11. 

13. What is the average dollar amount 
spent per month per facility on 
pharmacy over the past 12 months? 

YRTC-Kearney $32,340 

YRTC-Geneva $17,608 

These figures are provided as historical data 
but are in no way a guarantee of future 
expenditures resulting from this RFP. 

14. Who is your current pharmacy services 
provider? 

Maxor Correctional Pharmacy Services 

15. What current committees require a 
pharmacist to attend? What is the 
frequency of these meetings? Can they 
be attended by video or 
teleconferencing? 

There are no committees that require a 
pharmacist to attend. 

16. How does your current vendor destroy 
controlled substances, as they cannot 
be returned? 

YRTC-Geneva: Contractual pharmacist visits 
the facility 4 times per year to destroy meds.   

YRTC-Kearney: medical staff destroy meds 
on site as needed per protocol. 

17. Do your facilities currently use a 
barcode electronic order reconciliation 
and medication return management 
system? 

No. 

18. Does your facility currently use an 
electronic health record 
(EHR)/electronic medical record (EMR) 
system? If so, what is the name of the 
system? 

No, an electronic health record system is not 
now in use.  

19. Does your facility currently use an 
electronic health record 
(EHR)/electronic medical record (EMR) 
system? If so, is an interface required to 
connect to the system? 

See answer to Question 18. 
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QUESTIONS ANSWERS 

20. True unit-dose dispensing is required in 
many states and is the only way to 
guarantee the integrity of the dispensed 
tablets, the lot number, and expiration 
date of medications reclaimed by a 
pharmacy vendor from facilities around 
the country. A pharmacy vendor that 
dispenses medications in blister cards 
(both stock and patient-specific) is not 
enough; they must  individually label 
each bubble of the blister card with a 
medication’s name, strength, 
manufacturer, NDC number, lot number 
, and expiration date to be considered 
true unit-dose.  Not doing so causes a 
pharmacy to lose accountability of a 
medication’s lot number and expiration 
date during a drug recall which could 
cause patient harm, not to mention legal 
action against your facility.  

Will you mandate that bidders be in 
complete compliance at the time of 
proposal submission with this 
requirement—per Nebraska Revised 
Statute [NE ST 71-2453(2)]—so they 
can legally reclaim medications and 
provide credit to your facility? Will you 
deem bidders that choose not to, or 
cannot, label each bubble of a blister 
card with the required information for 
unit dose packaging as non-responsive 
and therefore ineligible for an award? 

Will you require a sample blister card to 
be submitted by each bidder as proof of 
compliance with this requirement?   If 
not, how will you determine if bidders 
are properly labeling their blister cards 
before an award is granted? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The project requirements state that 
preparation and packaging of all medications 
shall be performed in accordance with 
applicable federal and state laws and 
HHS/YRTC Administrative Regulations and 
Operational Memorandums.  Each proposal 
will be evaluated accordingly. 

 

 

The State may, at its sole discretion, request 
a demonstration, interview, or best and final 
offer from any and/or all bidders.  
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QUESTIONS ANSWERS 

21. Section IV.B.1.g states that deliveries 
must be within 12 hours of receiving the 
prescription. The RFP further states 
under Section IV.D.2 that deliveries are 
to be within 24 hours. To allow out-of-
state bidders to compete in a fair and 
competitive bid process, will you allow 
orders to be delivered within 24 hours of 
the daily order cutoff time, as this is the 
industry standard? 

Section IV.B.1.g states that deliveries for new 
prescriptions will be provided within 12 hours, 

if requested.  If not requested, then delivery 
within 24 hours is acceptable as stated in 
Section IV.D.2.   

22. Section IV.B.2 of the RFP states that the 
vendor must provide quarterly removal 
of medications. Does your current 
vendor not allow monthly returns of 
medications for credit and/or 
destruction? 

The current vendor does not permit returns. 
See answer to Question 16 for further 
information regarding the removal of 
medications from the facilities.  

23. Section IV.B.5 requires FedEx or UPS 
for the transportation of prescriptions for 
Schedule II controlled substances to the 
vendor. Nationally, typical procedures 
allow the USPS to provide this service. 
Can a vendor accept hard copies 
through USPS mail? 

Yes. 

24. Attachment B of the solicitation hints of 
a charge for “monthly consulting record 
fees.” Please clarify the requirement. If 
this is a current expense, could you 
provide these expenses per facility per 
month over the past 12 months? 

This is not a current expense. “Monthly 
consulting record fees” was referenced as an 
example of the types of costs to be included 
in the dispensing fees. 

25. If bidders offer services beyond your 
proposal specifications—such as free 
electronic prescribing and an electronic 
medical administration record (eMAR) 
program—can we submit that 
information in our proposal and would 
those services be considered as part of 
the evaluation process? 

Yes, Section IV.D.1. refers to how 
prescriptions may be transmitted 
(electronically is acceptable) and that the 
contractor is required to provide a secure 
transmittal process.  Section IV.B.3 refers to 
medication administration records, which the 
vendor may choose to supply via an eMAR 
program.  The process outlined by the vendor 
to supply these requirements will be part of 
the evaluation process. 

26. Will there be an opportunity to ask more 
questions in the event responses are 
unclear? 

The RFP’s Schedule of Events currently lists 
only one Question and Answer period. It is 
the bidder’s responsibility to monitor State 
Purchasing’s website for any changes to the 
Schedule of Events or addenda to the RFP.  
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QUESTIONS ANSWERS 

27. Please utilization information for purposes of 
pricing.  If drug level, NDC information is 
unavailable, generic utilization and average 
days’ supply would be helpful. Rx Utilization 
Request (period of Time > 3 Months)  

Drug Type 

Brand/Generic 

Number of 

Rxs Quantity/Rx 

Brands     

Generics     

Total     
 

See Exhibits A and B to this Addendum One. 

28. Please confirm if billing is direct to the 
facility? Or to individuals insurance? 

Billing is direct to the facilities. 

29. Are we to provide Medication Administration 
Records in paper form? Or via real time 
online? 

Vendor would need the capacity to supply 
records in both forms. 

30. Does the performance bond provision on 
page 18 of the RFP apply? If so, please 
confirm the required date of submission and 
the amount. 

Section III.DD. states that the selected 
contractor MAY be required to supply a 
certified check or a bond. This will be decided 
at time of award. The Schedule of Events 
lists this date as “To Be Determined”.  

31. Please clarify your expectations for the 
delivery of new prescriptions. Page 26 
(B)(1)(g) states within 12 hours of receiving 
a prescription. Page 28 (D)(2) states 24 
hours. 

See answer to Question 21. Any non-local 
vendor would need a local backup pharmacy 
for situations requiring more immediate 
attention. 

32. Please provide more information around 
delivery within 4 hours, situations/type of 
requests, frequency of occurrences and 
method of delivery?  

Some examples of emergency situations 
requiring 4-hour delivery could include: 
A youth on medication is admitted, but his/her 
meds did not accompany him/her; a youth’s 
medication runs out and must be replaced 
immediately, i.e. psychotropic or seizure 
meds; antibiotics that need to be started 
immediately; after surgery, a prescription for 
pain meds needs filled immediately; etc.  
Delivery is provided by a local back-up 
pharmacy in each community. Frequency is 
approx. 25 to 40 times per month for both 
facilities. 

33. Would you be receptive to a vendor 
provided stock of medications on -site, for 
stat or urgent medication needs? 

Since there are no staff on-site to fill 
prescriptions, it is not possible to keep 
prescriptions in stock on site (thus the need 
for this RFP). 

34. Could you identify your current contracted 
pharmacy vendor 

Maxor Correctional Pharmacy Services 
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QUESTIONS ANSWERS 

35. May we request the current brand, generic 
prescription pricing, dispensing fee and 
delivery fee? 

The current pricing structure is 20% discount 
off AWP on brand, 35% discount off AWP on 
generic, and a $3.25 dispensing fee per 
prescription.  There are no delivery (shipping) 
fees – this is included in the dispensing fee. 

36. Given the pending holiday’s would it be 
possible to extend the RFP due date to 
January 24

th
? 

It is the bidder’s responsibility to monitor 
State Purchasing’s website for any changes 
to the Schedule of Events or addenda to the 
RFP. 
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